

U.S AIR FORCE AIR CONFORMITY APPLICATION MODEL



QUICK START GUIDE

June 2025

Prepared by: Air Force Civil Engineer Center Compliance Technical Support Branch 2261 Hughes Ave., Ste 155 JBSA Lackland, Texas 78236-9853

Prepared by: Solutio Environmental, Inc. 407 8th St. San Antonio, Tx 78215

Contents

1	INTR	DDUCTION	5
	1.1	ACAM Software Installation and Uninstallation Instructions	6
	1.1.1	SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	6
	1.1.2	INSTALLATION	6
	1.1.3	UNINSTALLATION	6
	1.2	Interface and Features	6
	1.2.1	RIBBON	7
	1.2.2	STATUS PANEL	
	1.2.3	WORKSPACE	
	1.3	Flow and Results-Oriented Design	14
	1.3.1	The Status Panel	14
	1.3.2	Check and Status Forms	14
	1.3.3	Numbered Status Tabs	
2	BASI	C ACAM OPERATIONS	
	2.1	Running and Exiting ACAM	16
	2.2	ACAM Files and Reports	
	2.2.1	ACAM FILE	17
	2.2.2	ACAM REPORTS	
	2.3	ACAM Views	
	2.4	ACAM Activities	21
	2.4.1	Aircraft (AC)	22
	2.4.2	Fire Training (FT)	22
	2.4.3	Paint Booth (PB)	23
	2.4.4	Degreaser (DG)	23
	2.4.5	Tanks (TK)	23
	2.4.6	Construction (CD)	24
	2.4.7	Heating (HT)	24
	2.4.8	Generator (GN)	25
	2.4.9	Personnel (PN)	25
3	NINE	STEPS TO CREATE AN ACAM REPORT	26
	3.1	Introduction	26
	3.1.1	THE 9 STEPS TO CREATE AN ACAM REPORT	26
	3.1.2	Step 1: Launch ACAM and Save/Create ACAM File	27

3.1.3	STEP 2: Input Document Information	28
3.1.4	STEP 3: Select Desired Air Force Base	29
3.1.5	STEP 4: Proposed Action Information	
3.1.6	STEP 5: Add All Desired Activities	31
3.1.7	STEP 6: Calculate Steady State	
3.1.8	STEP 7: Analyze Proposed Action	
3.1.9	STEP 8: Re-Calculate Steady State	34
3.1.10	STEP 9: Creating the ACAM Report(s)	35
CONST	RUCTION CASE STUDY	
4.1 In	ntroduction	37
4.1.1	General Information	37
4.1.2	Activity Phases	
4.1.3	Demolition	41
4.1.4	Site Grading	43
4.1.5	Trenching	44
4.1.6	Building Construction	45
4.1.7	Architectural Coatings	46
4.1.8	Paving	47
4.1.9	Activity Location	48
AIRCRA	AFT FLIGHT OPERATIONS CASE STUDY	50
5.1 In	ntroduction	50
5.2 G	eneral Aircraft Terminology	50
5.2.1	Time-in-Mode (TIM)	51
5.2.2	Landing and Takeoff Cycle (LTO)	51
5.2.3	Close Pattern (CP) Cycle	52
5.2.4	Low Flight Pattern (LFP)	52
5.2.5	Auxiliary Power Unit (APU)	53
5.2.6	Aircraft Activity Overview	53
5.2.7	General Information	54
5.2.8	Activity Type	56
5.2.9	Aircraft and Engine	58
5.2.10	Flight Operations	59
5.2.11	Auxiliary Power Unit	60
5.2.12	Engine Test Cell(s)	61
	3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5 3.1.6 3.1.7 3.1.8 3.1.9 3.1.10 CONST 4.1 Ir 4.1.1 4.1.2 4.1.3 4.1.4 4.1.5 4.1.6 4.1.7 4.1.8 4.1.9 AIRCR/ 5.1 Ir 5.2.2 5.2.1 5.2.1 5.2.2 5.2.3 5.2.4 5.2.5 5.2.4 5.2.5 5.2.6 5.2.7 5.2.5 5.2.6 5.2.7 5.2.8 5.2.9 5.2.10 5.2.11 5.2.12	3.1.3 STEP 2: Input Document Information 3.1.4 STEP 3: Select Desired Air Force Base 3.1.5 STEP 4: Proposed Action Information 3.1.6 STEP 5: Add All Desired Activities 3.1.7 STEP 6: Calculate Steady State 3.1.8 STEP 7: Analyze Proposed Action 3.1.9 STEP 8: Re-Calculate Steady State 3.1.10 STEP 9: Creating the ACAM Report(s) CONSTRUCTION CASE STUDY 4.1 Introduction 4.1.1 General Information 4.1.2 Activity Phases 4.1.3 Demolition 4.1.4 Site Grading 4.1.5 Trenching 4.1.6 Building Construction 4.1.7 Architectural Coatings 4.1.8 Paving 4.1.9 Activity Location AIRCRAFT FLIGHT OPERATIONS CASE STUDY 5.1 Introduction 5.2 General Aircraft Terminology 5.2.1 Time-in-Mode (TIM) 5.2.2 Landing and Takeoff Cycle (LTO) 5.2.3 Close Pattern (LFP) 5.2.4 Low Flight Pattern (LFP) 5.

5.2.13	Aerospace Ground Equipment6	2
5.2.14	Activity Location	3

Figures

Figure 1.1 ACAM Application Main Section	6
Figure 1.2 ACAM Status Panel	11
Figure 1.3 ACAM Check and Status Forms	14
Figure 1.4 ACAM Number Status Tabs	15
Figure 2.1 Program Icon	16
Figure 2.2 File Icon	16
Figure 2.3 "x" Icon	16
Figure 2.4 "New" button	17
Figure 2.5 ACAM List View	19
Figure 2.6 Timeline View	20
Figure 2.7 ACAM Activities "Building Blocks"	21
Figure 2.8 Construction Phases	24
Figure 3.1 "Warning" Button	27
Figure 3.2 "Save" Button	27
Figure 3.3 "Save As" Button	27
Figure 3.4 Save As Window	27
Figure 3.5 "Document Information" Button	28
Figure 3.6 "Document Information Warning" Button	28
Figure 3.7 Document Information Window	28
Figure 3.8 Regulatory Area Window	28
Figure 3.9 "No Base Selected" Waring Button	29
Figure 3.10 Base "Selected" Button	29
Figure 3.11 Base Selection Window	29
Figure 3.12 Proposed Action Waring Button	30
Figure 3.13 Proposed Action Tab	30
Figure 3.14 Proposed Action Information	30
Figure 3.15 Activity "insert" Button	31
Figure 3.16 Activity Warning	31
Figure 3.17 ACAM Activities	31
Figure 3.18 "Steady State Calculation" Warning	32
Figure 3.19 Steady State Button	32
Figure 3.20 Activity List View	33
Figure 3.21 Timeline View	34
Figure 3.22 "Steady State Calculation Required" Button	34
Figure 3.23 ACAM Report Icon	35
Figure 3.24 ACAM Report Window	35
Figure 3.25 ACAM Report Save Menu	36
Figure 4.1 Construction and Demolition Activity	37

Figure 4.2 Construction and Demolition General Information Tab	38
Figure 4.3 General Information Tab 'Complete'	39
Figure 4.4 Construction Activity Phases Toggled OFF	39
Figure 4.5 "YES NO" Toggle	40
Figure 4.6 Construction Activity Phases Toggled ON	40
Figure 4.7 Demolition Phase Tab Window	41
Figure 4.8 Construction Activity Phasing	41
Figure 4.9 Demolition Inputs	42
Figure 4.10 Length, Width, and Height Diagram	42
Figure 4.11 Site Grading Phase Tab	43
Figure 4.12 Site Grading Input	43
Figure 4.13 Trenching Phase Tab	44
Figure 4.14 Excavating/Trenching Inputs	44
Figure 4.15 Building Construction Phase Tab	45
Figure 4.16 Building Construction Inputs	45
Figure 4.17 Architectural Coatings Phase Tab	46
Figure 4.18 Architectural Coatings Inputs	46
Figure 4.19 Paving Phase Tab	47
Figure 4.20 Paving Input	47
Figure 4.21 Activity Location Phase Tab	48
Figure 4.22 Selected Regulatory Area Section	49
Figure 5.1 Aircraft Activity accounted for in ACAM	50
Figure 5.2 Landing Take Off Cycle	51
Figure 5.3 Close Pattern Cycle	52
Figure 5.4 Low Flight Pattern Cycle	52
Figure 5.5 Aircraft Activity button	53
Figure 5.6 General Information window	54
Figure 5.7 Activity Indefinite Tab	55
Figure 5.8 Activity Phasing	55
Figure 5.9 General Information Complete	55
Figure 5.10 Activity Type	56
Figure 5.11 Activity Type (All Selected)	57
Figure 5.12 Aircraft and Engine	58
Figure 5.13 Aircraft Surrogate Information (if applicable)	58
Figure 5.14 Flight Operations Tab	59
Figure 5.15 APU Tab	60
Figure 5.16 Engine Test Cell(s) Tab	61
Figure 5.17 AGE Equipment Tab	62
Figure 5.18 Activity Location Phase Tab	63
Figure 5.19 Selected Regulatory Area Section	64

1 INTRODUCTION

As amended, Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act (CAA) requires Federal agencies to assure and make evident that every action and decision conforms to applicable air quality requirements including State Implementation Plan (SIP) for purposes of attaining the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published its final conformity rules in November 1993 (amending 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 51 and 93); establishing procedures and requirements that Federal agencies must satisfy in determining whether a certain action will conform. The conformity regulations differentiate Federal actions into transportation actions and non-transportation-related actions; however, most Air Force proposed actions consist of non-transportation related projects. Therefore, the Air Force has developed an automated screening tool known as the Air Conformity Applicability Model (ACAM) to perform a simplified General Conformity Rule Applicability Analysis for non-transportation proposed actions and projects.

ACAM is a computer model used by Air Force planners and Environmental Impact Analysis Process (EIAP) personnel in the determination of General Conformity applicability for proposed actions in nonattainment or maintenance designated areas. This tool is used to identify proposed actions and alternatives which would likely result in no or minimal emission increases, and those actions which may result in no or minimal emission increases, and those actions which may require further air quality analysis and undergo a General Conformity determination. ACAM calculates criteria pollutants, hazardous air pollutants (HAPs), and greenhouse gases (GHG) for proposed Air Force actions while requiring minimal inputs from the user. The resultant calculations are entered into standardized reports that follow the requirements for the Air Force's Record of Conformity Analysis (ROCA) reporting format.

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

For additional information or technical assistance, contact:

FRANK CASTANEDA, III, P.E., GS-14, DAF

Air Force Air Quality Subject Matter Expert Compliance Technical Support Branch HQ AFCEC/CZTQ Email: <u>fransisco.castaneda@us.af.mil</u> Phone: 210.925.3237 Operator: 210.572.7341, ext.-125

Solutio Environmental, Inc. ACAM Developer Website: <u>www.AQhelp.com/ACAM.html</u> Email: <u>ACAM@solutioenv.com</u>

1.1 ACAM Software Installation and Uninstallation Instructions

1.1.1 SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

ACAM is a standalone desktop application for use on Standard Government Computers running Microsoft Windows XP service pack 3 through Windows 11.

1.1.2 INSTALLATION

Obtain the latest version of ACAM from Solutio Environmental Inc. by completing a SAAR form found on AQhelp.com and sending to <u>ACAM@solutioenv.com</u>.

To install ACAM, double-click to run the ACAM installer File (e.g. ACAMSetup111413.exe), then follow the instructions in the Setup Wizard. ACAM creates a desktop icon automatically after installation.

1.1.3 UNINSTALLATION

ACAM can be uninstalled through Microsoft Window's Control Panel and following the normal steps to uninstall a program on a PC.

1.2 Interface and Features

ACAM implements a results-oriented interface to provide an environment in which a user can quickly create, modify, and finalize an air analysis for various Air Force activities. The results-oriented interface inherits many designs and features from Microsoft Office products, such as Microsoft Word, to give a familiar feel to the user. This assists in the ease of usability of the program, as the user will likely possess knowledge of how certain aspects operate.

The interface of ACAM is divided into 3 main sections, shown below in Figure 1.1. The 3 main sections will be referred to as the Ribbon, Status Panel, and the Workspace.

•Ribbon	Ó
Cold Action (Attended) (**)	

Figure 1.1 ACAM Application Main Section

1.2.1 RIBBON

The first main section of ACAM's results-oriented interface is the Ribbon. ACAM's Ribbon is the area above the Workspace and the Status Panel. The Ribbon section is made up of tabs (the upper white portion) and their menus (the lower gray portion). This section gives the user easy 2-click access to all functions in the program.

RIBBON – FILE MENU

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
New	New	Creates a new ACAM file (and closes the currently open ACAM file).
Open	Open	Open an existing ACAM file (and closes the currently open ACAM file).
Save	Save	Saves all changes made to the current ACAM file.
Save As	Save As	Saves all changes made to the current ACAM file in a specified file.
Close	Close	Closes the current ACAM file.
Doc Info	Document Information	Displays the Document Information window.
FM Fleet Mix	Fleet Mixture	Displays the vehicle Fleet Mixture window.
SC-GHG	SC-GHG	Displays the Social Cost of Greenhouse Gasses (GHG) window.

RIBBON – VIEW MENU

-

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
List	List View	Changes ACAM's Workspace current display format to a list view.
TimeLine	Timeline View	Change ACAM's Workspace current display format to a timeline view.

RIBBON – BASE MENU

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
Select	Select	Displays the Base List window for Base selection.
Edit	Edit	Displays the Base Emissions window.
Reset	Reset	Resets all Base and Base Emission data previously inputted.
Clear	Clear	Clears all Base and Base Emission data inputted into the ACAM file.

RIBBON – INSERT MENU

-

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
AC	Aircraft	Displays the Aircraft Activity window.
Fire Training	Fire Training	Displays the Fire Training Activity window.
PB Paint Booth	Paint Booth	Displays the Paint Booth Activity window.
Degreaser	Degreaser	Displays the Degreaser Activity window.
CD Const/Demo	Const/Demo	Displays the Construction/Demolition window.
HT Heating	Heating	Displays the Heating Activity window.
EG Emer Gen	Emer Gen	Displays the Emergency Generators Activity window.
PN Personnel	Personnel	Displays the Personnel Activity window.
TK	Tanks	Displays the Tanks Activity window.

RIBBON – REPORTS MENU

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
WORD MS Word	Microsoft Word Reports	Displays the Microsoft Word Reports window for generating ACAM reports.

RIBBON – HELP MENU

_

Button	Button Name	Button Use (What is it for?)
HELP Help	Help	For further assistance when using ACAM, clicking this button opens the point of contact for additional help.
TECH Support	Support	If encountering an issue with ACAM not addressed in this Guide, clicking this button will display contact information for additional technical support.
ABOUT About	About	Displays background information for owners/creators of ACAM.

1.2.2 STATUS PANEL

The second main section of ACAM's result-oriented interface is the Status Panel. As shown previously in Figure 1.1, the Status Panel is the area to the left of the workspace. The purpose of the status panel is to give the user a fast and easy-to-use summary of the minimum report requirements needed to generate an ACAM Report with the current ACAM File.

This section is broken up into four parts, starting from top to bottom:

- 1. Base Selection
- 2. ACAM Warnings
- 3. Document Information
- 4. Application Information

The four parts listed above are shown in Figure 1.2.

Base Selection displays information about the Air Force base that the air analysis is for. This includes the base name and state that the base is located in.

ACAM warnings displays a list of tasks that are the minimum requirements to complete an ACAM file. This part of the Status Panel lists out all of the tasks required to complete an ACAM file, and subsequently generates an ACAM Report, in order from top to bottom (the first task is the top warning, and the last task is the bottom).

Documentation Information displays data about the current

ACAM file document and who is conducting the analysis.

Application Information displays data about the ACAM program. This is where a user can see what version of the ACAM program he/she has.



ATLANTIC CITY ANGB

New Jersey

ACAM Warnings ----

- Document Information Required.
- Proposed Action Information Required.
- At Least One Activity Required.

Document Info -----

Current Document Version: ACAM12012023

Date Document Created: *9/16/2024 3:40:23 PM*

Date Document Last Modified: 9/16/2024 3:40:23 PM

Analysis By:

Application Info -

Application Version: 5.0.23a

Latest Document Version: ACAM01012022

Figure 1.2 ACAM Status Panel

0

The best way to complete an ACAM file is to start at the top of the ACAM warnings list and work your way down. Doing this will allow the user to take advantage of all the smart features that make completing an ACAM file easy. The warnings presented when opening an ACAM file, as well as other frequent warnings will be discussed on the following page.

Save Warning. File has been modified.

STATUS PANEL – ACAM WARNINGS LIST

Warning / Button	Task Required to Complete	What the Button Does When Clicked
Save Warning. File has been modified.	Indicates that the ACAM file has been modified and the user should save the file.	Button will save all changes made to the current ACAM file.
Ocument Information Required.	Indicates that the Document Information and Regulatory Area Standards are not complete.	Button will display the Document Information window.
Proposed Action Information Required.	Indicates that the Proposed Action Information is not complete.	Button will navigate the user's workspace to the "USAF Action" tab.
No Base Selected.	Indicates that no Air Force base is selected.	Button will bring the Base selection window up.
At Least One Activity Required.	Indicates that no Activities have been added to the ACAM file.	Button will navigate the user's ribbon to the "Insert" tab.
Steady State Calculation Required.	Indicates that the ACAM file needs to re-calculate when air emission steady state will occur.	Button will re-calculate air emissions steady state.

1.2.3 WORKSPACE

The third and final main section of ACAM's results-oriented interface is the Workspace. ACAM's Workspace is the area below the Ribbon and to the right of the status panel. Refer to Figure 1.1 for reference. The Workspace section is made up of tabs and pages, similar to Microsoft Excel's tabs and spreadsheets.

Buttons specific to the Workspace will be discussed in the table below.

Tab / Button	Tab / Button Name	What the Tab/Button Does When Clicked
USAF Action Alter lative 1	Proposed Action Information (USAF Action) Tab	Tab will display the proposed action information tab on the user's workspace.
ED Steedy S te	Alternative 1 Tab	Tab will display the different views (List or Timeline) of the activities inputted into ACAM.
USAF Action Alter ative 1 Steady State	Re-Calculate Steady State Button	Button will re-calculate steady state for the currently displayed alternative.

WORKSPACE - TABS / BUTTONS

1.3 Flow and Results-Oriented Design

ACAM's results-oriented design also provides the user with a clear and easy to follow path for completing an ACAM Report. This is achieved with three interface designs:

- 1. The Status Panel
- 2. Check and Status Forms
- 3. Numbered Status Tabs

1.3.1 The Status Panel

As stated previously, the Status Panel gives the user a quick and easy-to-use summary of the minimum requirements needed to generate an ACAM Report with the current ACAM file. The Status Panel can be thought of as a roadmap for creating an ACAM Report. This roadmap contains two great features that help to make using ACAM fast and easy. The first feature is every warning listed in the ACAM Warnings list is a button that will either open the appropriate window or will navigate the user to the section of the ACAM file that needs to be completed. The second feature that enhances the user's experience is that these Warnings are displayed to the user in the most optimal order (from top to bottom) to be addressed in the process of completing the ACAM file.



NOTE: A user can click on the first ACAM warning until all of the warnings are gone, to complete an ACAM file.

1.3.2 Check and Status Forms

Every screen or form that requires user input in ACAM follows the same design; a Check Form Button (Figure 1.3) at the bottom of the form, and a Form Completion Status Indicator (Figure 1.3) at the top of the form. Clicking on the check button will start a validation process in which ACAM will check the entire form for correctness and completion. If any field is incorrectly filled out or empty, ACAM will highlight the field(s) in red and the form completion status indicator will display "Incomplete". If all fields are filled out correctly, ACAM will update the form completion status indicator with "Complete". Check and Status Forms provide the user with immediate feedback on the correctness and completion of all user inputs for any given form in ACAM.



Figure 1.3 ACAM Check and Status Forms

1.3.3 Numbered Status Tabs

A window that contains multiple forms implements ACAM's numbered status tabs (Figure 1.4). Numbered status tabs are tabs that indicate the completion status of the form in the tab area, and are ordered in a way that allows the user to take advantage of all the smart features that make completing an ACAM file easy.



NOTE: Some smart features and automations in ACAM require the user to complete all tabs in the order that they are numbered



Figure 1.4 ACAM Number Status Tabs

2 BASIC ACAM OPERATIONS

2.1 Running and Exiting ACAM

Windows usually provides more than one way to perform a task and starting ACAM is no exception. The standard way to get ACAM started is double-clicking the ACAM program icon (Figure 2.1) on your desktop. This will open a new ACAM file.

Another way to start ACAM is by double-clicking the name or icon of an ACAM file (Figure 2.2) in Windows Explorer or My Computer. This will open the ACAM file that the user double-clicked on.





Figure 2.1 Program Icon

Figure 2.2 File Icon

Exiting ACAM is just like any other Microsoft Office product, just click on the "x" icon in the upper right-hand corner (Figure 2.3); just as would be done when exiting any program on a PC.

—	Ō	×

Figure 2.3 "x" Icon



NOTE: If there are any unsaved changes to the current ACAM file, the user will be prompted with the option to save, such as when exiting a Microsoft Word document.

2.2 ACAM Files and Reports

ACAM has two basic outputs:

- 1. ACAM File (.ACAM)
- 2. ACAM Report (.docx)

These outputs are vastly different but can be easily confused. To help understand the difference, we will compare ACAM to Microsoft Word and its outputs.

2.2.1 ACAM FILE

An ACAM file can be used to store and share user inputs via email, flash drives, shared drives, and by using other mediums, so long as the other user has the same version of ACAM installed on their computer. Once the file is shared, changes can be made or updated and then be shared again. ACAM provides the user(s) with immense flexibility in usage and storage.

ACAM files are created by either opening the ACAM program in the manners previously discussed, or if the program is already open by clicking the "New" button, shown in Figure 2.4; this button is located by clicking the "File" button in the Ribbon of ACAM.



Figure 2.4 "New" button

2.2.2 ACAM REPORTS

An ACAM report can be thought of as the final product of an ACAM file. Similarly, a printed paper from Word can be thought of as the final product of a Word file. ACAM reports are just like files that can be emailed and shared with anyone. ACAM reports can be created after an ACAM file is complete and has no warnings listed in the Status Panel.

There are four types of ACAM reports, ACAM Summary Report (Air Conformity Applicability Model Report), ACAM Detail Report, ACAM Greenhouse Gasses (GHG) Report and the optional ACAM Social Cost of Greenhouse Gasses (SC-GHG) Report.

The ACAM Summary Report compiles the total yearly emissions for a given set of activities in the ACAM file. The report will flag any pollutant thresholds that are exceeded. This type of report is beneficial in determining if the selected Air Force Base exceeds any thresholds or just displays the amount of pollutant contributed by the base activity by displaying an indicator level.

The ACAM Detail Report provides more information regarding the actual pollutant sources. Each activity in the ACAM document has its own section in the detailed report, which helps show which activities are causing the most pollution. It should be noted that the values for the activities are the total amount for the time period; they are not annual values.

The ACAM GHG Report provides the total combined direct and indirect GHG emissions that are associated with the action. Estimations through ACAM are calculated on a calendar-year basis from the action's start through the action's "steady state" (SS, net gain/loss in emission stabilized and the action is fully implemented) of emissions. All GHG emissions estimates were derived from various emission sources using methods, algorithms, emission factors, and global warming potentials from the most current Air Emissions Guide for Air Force Stationary Sources, Air Emissions Guide for Air Force Mobile Sources, and/or Air Emissions Guide for Air Force Transitory Sources.

The optional ACAM Social Cost of Greenhouse Gasses Report calculates the total, direct, and indirect emissions associated with the action, from the action start through the expected lifecycle of the action. This report will also calculate the social cost of greenhouse gas estimates associated with those greenhouse gas emissions. The SC-GHG estimates are derived using the methodology and discount factors in the "Technical Support Document: Social Cost of Carbon, Methane, and Nitrous Oxide Interim Estimates under Executive Order 13990," released by the Interagency Working Group on Social Cost of Greenhouse Gases (IWG SC GHGs) in February 2021. This report is now optional because Executive Order 13990 (Protecting Public Health and the Environment and Restoring Science To Tackle the Climate Crisis) was rescinded.

ACAM Reports can be created after an ACAM file is complete (i.e. all activities for the action are inserted) and has no warnings in the status panel. Steps for creating an ACAM report will be discussed later in this document.

2.3 ACAM Views

ACAM allows the user to analyze and interact with data through two different layouts called "views". The two types of views are accessed by clicking on the "VIEW" tab in the ribbon of ACAM. The user will then be presented with two options: List View and Timeline View.

List View, like the name suggests, lists all of the activity inputs (in the Workspace) compiled by the user, as well as the emission totals for the entire activity, or annually, if it is set to run indefinitely for each individually created activity. These summary blocks are designed to be easy to read and refer to, so the user can make observations before generating a report. Furthermore, activities can be edited or deleted by clicking the corresponding buttons. For reference, an example of activities in a given ACAM file in List View are shown below, in Figure 2.5

USAF Ac	tion A	Iternative 1							
								I	List View
ALL EPA RI	EGULATO	RY AREAS							
	AC	E-25 Elight (parations					Start Date	End Date
	AU	r-ss riight o	perations					1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	e	Activity Desc	ription	Start Guide					
	ADD	ACAM EXam	pie for Quick	Start Galac					
	À.	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	VED	VOC	NOx	СО	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
	A	0	4.83	0.09	0.23	0.26	0.23	0	0
	AC	E 15E Elight	Operations					Start Date	End Date
	AG	r-ise hight	operations					1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	8	Activity Desc	ription	Start Guide					
	ADD	Provini Examp	one for Quick	Start Guide					
	VTI	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	Ē	VOC	NOx	CO	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
		0.03	3.23	0.04	0.12	0.1	0.09	0	0
	AC	E-35 Elight C	nerations					Start Date	End Date
	AU	1 55 Hight C	perations					1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	8	Activity Desc ACAM Exam	ription ole for Ouick	Start Guide					
	ADD								
	AL.	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	CTIV	VOC	NOx	СО	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
	A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Figure 2.5 ACAM List View

Timeline View provides the user with an interactive timeline for all activities. The timeline is broken up by year blocks and displays emissions threshold for that year. If the total yearly emissions are below emissions thresholds designated by the regulatory areas that encompass the Air Force Base selected, then the number displayed for a given criteria pollutant represents the total tons **under** the emission threshold and will be green in color. If the total yearly emissions exceed a threshold, then the number will represent the total ton **over** the emissions thresholds. Refer to Figure 2.6 for reference.



Figure 2.6 Timeline View

2.4 ACAM Activities

Individual activities that result in increases or decreases in air emissions can be thought of as a set of Building Blocks, pictured in Figure 2.7. Each block can be stacked together to create (build) air emissions estimates. Multiple of the same type of block can be stacked together, for example, two "Flight Ops" can be stacked together for an air emission estimate.



Figure 2.7 ACAM Activities "Building Blocks"

2.4.1 Aircraft (AC)

Aircraft (AC) activities include Flight Operations, Engine Test Cell, and Aerospace Ground Equipment. Aircraft Operations estimates are in accordance with the most current DAF, EPA, and California regulations and guidance:

- 40 CFR 51, Appendix W, *Guideline on Air Quality Models* (Revised), U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, EPA Publication No: EPA-450/2-78-027R
- 40 CFR 93, Subpart B, Determining Conformity of General Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementations Plans
- San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (2009), 2007 Area Source Emissions Inventory Methodology, 810 – Piston Aircraft – Military, 810 – Jet Aircraft – Military, Revised 13 June 2009
- United States Environmental Protection Agency (2002). *Procedures for Emission Inventory Preparation, Volume IV: Mobile sources.* EPA Publication No: EPA-420-R-92-009
- Air Emissions Guide for Air Force Mobile Source. United States Air Force (July 2024)



2.4.2 Fire Training (FT)

The Fire Training (FT) activity is used to create estimates in accordance with DAF Stationary Source Guide and EPA AP-42 methodology. Estimates for FT activity are based on the fuel used and the number of burns per year. Default values associated with FT activity estimates are based on a DAF-wide study.





2.4.3 Paint Booth (PB)

The Paint Booth (PB) activity estimates are in accordance with the DAF Stationary Source Guide and the EPA AP-42 methodology. Estimates are based on the coating used (percentage of volatile organic compounds [VOCs], and the specific gravity), and the control device efficiency. Default PB activity estimate values are based on quick dry enamel.

2.4.4 Degreaser (DG)

The Degreaser (DG) activity estimates are in accordance with the DAF Stationary Source Guide and the EPA AP-42 methodology. DG activity estimates are based on the type of solvent used (percentage of volatile organic compounds [VOCs], and the specific gravity), and the control device efficiency. Default PB activity estimate values are based on mineral spirits.





2.4.5 Tanks (TK)

Tank activity estimates are in accordance with the DAF Stationary Source Guide, the EPA TANKS model, and the EPA AP-42 methodology. Tanks can either be horizontal or vertical, and above-ground or under-ground.



2.4.6 Construction (CD)

Construction/Demolition activity estimates are in accordance with the DAF Mobile Source Guide, and the EPA MOVES, URBEMIS, and CalEEMod models. Default values for construction/demolition estimates are based on the DAF-wide study, URBEMIS, and CalEEMod models. The phases for construction/demolition activities are shown in figure 2.8.

	Unique Phase Emission Classes							
Phase	Fugitive Dust	Construction Exhaust	Vehicle Exhaust	Worker Trips	Vendor Trips	Off- Gassing		
Demolition	Х	Х	Х	Х				
Site Grading	Х	Х	Х	Х				
Trenching/Excavation	Х	Х	Х	Х				
Building Construction		Х	Х	Х	Х			
Architectural Coatings				Х		Х		
Paving (Asphalt)		X	Х	Х		Х		

Figure 2.8 Construction Phases

2.4.7 Heating (HT)

Heating activity estimates are based on one of two methods: the Rated Capacity Method and the Heat Energy Requirement Method. The Rated Capacity Method generates estimates in accordance with the DAF Stationary Source Guide and the EPA AP-42 methodology and is based on fuel usage (heating value), boiler rated capacity, and runtime. The Heat Energy Requirement Method is the alternative method used when the actual equipment is not known. This method predicts heating requirements based on the U.S. Department of Energy's energy intensity values and specific climatic data.





2.4.8 Generator (GN)

The Generators (GN) activity estimates are in accordance with DAF Stationary Source Guide and the EPA AP-42 methodology. Estimates are based on the type of fuel used, the horsepower (hp) of generators, and their runtime. Default GN activity estimate values are based on a DAF-wide study.

2.4.9 Personnel (PN)

Personnel activity estimates are in accordance with the DAF Mobile Source Guide and the EPA MOVES emission factors, based on personnel change and vehicle miles from traveled emissions. Default values for personnel activity estimates are based on a DAF-wide study.



3 NINE STEPS TO CREATE AN ACAM REPORT

3.1 Introduction

ACAM can create air emissions analysis reports in nine easy steps. To make this process easier, ACAM also provides an interactive road map in the form of the Status Panel as previously mentioned. In this section of the ACAM Quick Start Guide. An overview of the nine steps is provided below, and each step will be discussed in further detail in the following pages of this Guide.

3.1.1 THE 9 STEPS TO CREATE AN ACAM REPORT

- Step 1: Launch ACAM and Save/Create the ACAM File
- Step 2: Input Document Information
- Step 3: Select Desired USAF Base
- Step 4: Proposed Action Information
- Step 5: Add All Desired Activities

Repeat until all Activities are inputted and reviewed for accuracy

- Step 6: Calculate Steady State (whenever prompted in the Status Panel)
- Step 7: Analyze Proposed Action
- Step 8: Re-Calculate Steady State
- Step 9: Create the desired ACAM Report(s)

NOTE: Be sure to save any changes to the ACAM File when prompted to in the Status Panel.

3.1.2 Step 1: Launch ACAM and Save/Create ACAM File

Launch ACAM, as previously discussed, by clicking on the ACAM Icon on the Desktop of the in-use Personal Computer (PC), or wherever the program launch icon is located. The user will be greeted with the default ACAM opening page, with numerous warnings located in the status panel. The user should tackle these warnings in order from top to bottom. The first warning presented to the user is shown below.



By clicking this warning, or by navigating to the "FILE" menu in the ribbon of ACAM and clicking the "Save" or "Save As" button (pictured above), the user will be prompted with the save window presented when saving any file on a PC for the first time.



Figure 3.4 Save As Window

Title the ACAM document and select a desired location on the PC in use to save the file. Finalize the process by clicking "Save" on the Save Window.



NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up anytime the document is changed. Clicking it updates any changes made to the document.

If the user does not want to make any changes to the current document, but wants to continue to alter it, click "Save As" (shown in Figure 3.3) to save another version of the current document.

3.1.3 STEP 2: Input Document Information

The second warning in the ACAM Status Panel is the Document Information Warning. By clicking on the warning (Figure 3.6) or the "Doc Info" button in the "FILE" menu of the ribbon (Figure 3.5), a Document Information Window will open.



Document Information Required.

Figure 3.6 "Document Information Warning" Button

Figure 3.5 "Document Information" Button

The user will be prompted to fill out the required information in both tabs, shown in Figure 3.7 and Figure 3.8 "Check" at the bottom of each tab to ensure all the required information is entered. Click "OK" once both tabs have been completed.

Bocument Information		– o ×	220	Document Information		- 🗆 X
-1- Document Informatic	-2- Regulatory Area Standards INCOMPLETE		ŀ	1- Document Information COMPLETE	-2- Regulator	y Area Standards MPLETE
Document General Information			Г	- Regulatory Area Standards I	Default Settings	
Date Document Created:	9/17/2024 2:35:04 PM			Use Default Settings?		YES NO
Date Document Last Modified:	9/17/2024 2:35:04 PM					VES is selected
Analysis By				Regulatory Area Standard RE	VOKED	
Full Name:				8-Hour Ozone (O3)		
Bank / Title:				Use Standard: Yes	 Standard: 	Worst Case 8HR Ozone (O3) 1997, 2008 and 2015 $\qquad \lor$
				Carbon Monoxide (CO) ——		
Organization:				Use Standard: Yes	 Standard: 	Carbon Monoxide (CO)
Phone Number:				Nitrogen Dioxide (NOx)		
Email:				Use Standard: Yes	Standard:	Nitrogen Dioxide (NOx)
Document Version Informatio	on.			Sulfur Dioxide (SOx)	_	
Current Document Version:	ACAM12012023			Use Standard: Yes	 Standard: 	Worst Case Sulfur Dioxide (SOx) 1971 and 2010
Latest Desument Version.	ACAM05202015			Particulate Matter PM-10 —		
Latest Document version:				Use Standard: Yes	Standard:	Particulate Matter PM-10
Version Status:	Document is using the most up-to-date version.			Particulate Matter PM-2.5 —	_	
				Use Standard: Yes	Standard:	Worst Case Particulate Matter PM-2.5 2012, 2006 and 1997
				Lead (Pb)		
				Use Standard: Yes	 Standard: 	Worst Case Lead (Pb) 2008 and 1978
						Check
	Check					
		OK Cancel	1			OK Cancel
			-	T .	A A F	
Figure 371	Document Information Wir	ndow		Figure	3.8 Re	gulatory Area Window

igure 3.7 Document Information Window

S š



NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning Figure 3.1 will pop up anytime the document is changed. Clicking it updates the changes made to the document.

3.1.4 STEP 3: Select Desired Air Force Base

The next ACAM warning in the status panel is shown in Figure 3.9 Clicking this warning, or navigating to the "BASE" menu in the ribbon, and clicking "Select" (pictured in Figure 3.10) opens a window that allows the user to select the Air Force Base the proposed action is taking place at.



Clicking on either of these buttons opens the window shown in Figure 3.11. The user should navigate through this list and then click on their desired base, once they locate it in the list. The drop-down menus for filter and filter-type can be utilized for easier location of the desired base. Click "OK" once the base has been selected.



Figure 3.11 Base Selection Window

NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up any time the document is changed. Clicking the save button updates the changes made to the document.

3.1.5 STEP 4: Proposed Action Information

Step 4 requires the user to enter the Proposed Action Information. This is where the user will give an overview of the proposed action, as well as a title for ACAM report purposes. By clicking on either the warning in the ACAM Status Panel (Figure 3.12) or the USAF Action tab in the Workspace (Figure 3.13), the table shown in Figure 3.8 will be shown in the Workspace.



Proposed Action Information Required.

Figure 3.12 Proposed Action Waring Button

Figure 3.13 Proposed Action Tab

Action Alt	ernative 1
	Proposed Action Information
	INCOMPLETE
	UNITED STATES AIR FORCE (USAF) ACTION
	TITLE OF PROPOSED ACTION
	PROPOSED ACTION PROJECT NUMBERS (if applicable):
	PURPOSE AND NEED FOR ACTION (brief description):
	DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED ACTION AND ALTERNATIVES (brief description):
	Check
1	

Figure 3.14 Proposed Action Information

Type all the required information in the respective text boxes, then click "Check".

NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up any time the document is changed. Clicking the save button updates the changes made to the document.

3.1.6 STEP 5: Add All Desired Activities

Step 5 is perhaps the most important step in the process of creating an ACAM document. This step is where the user will add all the necessary activities related to the proposed action. Clicking the warning in the Status Panel (Figure 3.15) or by clicking the "INSERT" menu tab (Figure 3.16) in the ribbon will display all the options for activities in ACAM (Figure 3.17).



It is recommended the user review their proposed action documentation and construct a list of all proposed actions for a given Alternative. Once this list has been constructed, click on the desired activity(s) for the proposed action. All the Activities in ACAM are shown below, in Figure 3.17



Figure 3.17 ACAM Activities

Clicking on the desired icon (located in the ribbon) opens that activity's corresponding window. The user will need to complete each numbered tab in numerical order by entering in the appropriate data and reviewing the default data settings to ensure they adequately reflect the proposed action. Each time a tab is completed, click "Check" to ensure all required information is entered.

This step will need to be repeated until all activities are added or removed from the desired Alternative in ACAM.



NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up any time the document is changed. Clicking the save button updates the changes made to the document.

The steady state warning that will appear after each activity is added or altered will be discussed in Step 6.

3.1.7 STEP 6: Calculate Steady State

A steady state calculation **must** be done before producing an ACAM Report; however, it is recommended to calculate steady state each time the warning (Figure 3.18) presents itself in the Status Panel of ACAM.

Steady State Calculation Required.

Figure 3.18 "Steady State Calculation" Warning

Clicking this button calculates steady state. The user can also calculate steady state manually by navigating to the "Timeline View" via the "VIEW" menu in the ribbon, and by clicking the steady state button in the Workspace, as shown in Figure 3.19.



0

NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up any time the document is changed. Clicking the save button updates the changes made to the document

3.1.8 STEP 7: Analyze Proposed Action

Once the user has added all relevant activities and calculated steady state for a proposed action, the user should now review the emission totals from the proposed action. As previously discussed in this Guide, it is beneficial to use the List View, under the "VIEW" menu in the ACAM ribbon, to review emission totals from each given activity. It is useful to utilize the Timeline View, so to see emission totals for all activities for the year(s) being analyzed. Figure 3.20 displays an example of activities in the List View, and Figure 3.21 displays the same activities in the Timeline View.

USAF Ac	tion Al	ternative 1							
								I	list View
ALL EPA RI	EGULATO	RY AREAS							
	10	5 DE Elight O						Start Date	End Date
	АĿ	F-35 Flight O	perations					1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	e	Activity Desc	ription	Start Guide					
	JOD	ACAIVI EXAIIII		Start Guide					
	ITV /	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	CTIV	VOC	NOx	СО	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
	A	0	4.83	0.09	0.23	0.26	0.23	0	0
	AC	r 155 Elight	Coorations					Start Date	End Date
	AL	F-TSE Flight	Operations		_			1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	8	Activity Desc	ription	Start Guide					
	ADD	ACAM EXCIT	JIC TOT QUICK	Start Guide					
	/ITV	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	CTIV	VOC	NOx	CO	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
	A	0.03	3.23	0.04	0.12	0.1	0.09	0	0
	AC	E-35 Elight O	perations					Start Date	End Date
	AU	1-55 Hight G	perations					1/2025	INDEF
EDIT	8	Activity Desc	ription ble for Quick	Start Guide					
	ADD								
	ЛТУ	Activity Emis	sion for 1 Yea	r (Tons/Year)					
DELETE	CTIV	VOC	NOx	CO	SOx	PM 10	PM 2.5	Pb	NH3
	A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Figure 3.20 Activity List View

In the List View, the user can utilize the "EDIT" button to the left of each individual activity to review any inputted data or make any changes.

The "DELETE" button can be used to remove an activity entirely. Use caution when deleting an activity, as it cannot be recovered and the user will have to re-enter all information should it be necessary to add the deleted activity back.

The Timeline View gives the user the option to adjust the start dates for an activity by clicking the "L" and "R". This allows the user to reanalyze emission totals by time. Since emission thresholds or indicators are relevant for one year, having the ability to alter the activities by time allows the user to explore other alternatives if the proposed action is exceeding a threshold.



Figure 3.21 Timeline View

NOTE: Once this step is completed, the save warning in Figure 3.1 will pop up any time the document is changed. Clicking the save button updates the changes made to the document.

3.1.9 STEP 8: Re-Calculate Steady State

Step 8 is identical to Step 6. If any changes were made to the activities in Step 7, the user will be prompted with the ACAM warning to calculate steady state (Figure 3.22).



Figure 3.22 "Steady State Calculation Required" Button

Clicking on this button will re-calculate steady state just as it did before. After clicking, the user will be shown another warning requiring the document to be saved.

3.1.10 STEP 9: Creating the ACAM Report(s)

Once all the information has been reviewed by the user and steady state for the finalized data has been calculated, the user can now create an ACAM Report. As mentioned before in the Basic ACAM Operation section of this guide, there are four types of ACAM Report that can be generated. The process for generating a report, regardless of which one(s) selected by the user, is identical. The user should navigate to the "REPORTS" menu in the ribbon. Clicking the "MS Report" button shown in Figure 3.23, brings forth the window shown in Figure 3.24.



Figure 3.23 ACAM Report Icon

Reports -	-		×
Reports (MS Word)			
ACAM Report			
AIR CONFORMITY APPLICABILITY MODEL REPORT			
Select Alternative to be reported on:			
Create Report			
C Detail ACAM Report			1
DETAIL AIR CONFORMITY APPLICABILITY MODEL REPORT			
Select Alternative to be reported on:			
Create Report			
			J
			1
Create Report			
OPTIONAL) ACAM SCGHG Report			
[OPTIONAL] ACAM SOCIAL COST OF GREENHOUSE GASSES REPORT			
Create Report			
			1
			\sim
		OK	

Figure 3.24 ACAM Report Window

By utilizing the drop-down menus for the report respectively, the user can select the Alternative in ACAM they wish to create a report for (Note there will only be one option to choose from, "alternative 1"). Clicking the "Create Report" button within the desired report type's tab work area will create the report in Word document form.

Save As								×
← → ~ ↑ 💻	> This PC			~	õ	Search This PC		,P
Organize 💌							<u>8</u> : •	0
This PC	^	- Folders	(6)					-
Desktop			Desktop					
Music	1		Documents					
BOOTCAMP (C:)	4	Downloads					
Network	v	2	Music					
File name:	ACAM Re	port						~
Save as type:	Word Doc	uments (.do	0)					
∧ Hide Folders						Save	Cancel	

The user will be presented with the save window shown in Figure 3.25.

Figure 3.25 ACAM Report Save Menu

The user will need to name the ACAM Report and select a location to save it on their PC. Once the file has been named and a location is selected, click "Save" to close the window.

The user has now completed all the steps to create an ACAM File. The ACAM Report(s), as well as the ACAM File, can be shared with other individuals. The ACAM File can also be altered in any way the user deems necessary based upon the data presented in the report(s). Any changes should follow the general 9 step process discussed in this guide. Once any changes are made to the file, a new ACAM Report(s) can be created.

4 CONSTRUCTION CASE STUDY

4.1 Introduction

Construction activities are often associated with proposed action of the USAF. ACAM fully automates most construction activities a user may need to estimate emissions for in a proposed action. ACAM includes Demolition, Site Grading, Excavating and Trenching, Building Construction, Architectural Coatings, and Paving (asphalt). This case study provides a general overview of how to use the construction activity module in ACAM.

To begin, select the "Const/Demo" icon in the Ribbon, picture in Figure 4.1.



Figure 4.1 Construction and Demolition Activity

4.1.1 General Information

Selecting the Const/Demo icon will bring forth the ACAM window pictured in Figure 4.2. The user should begin with tab 1, titled "General Information". It should be noted that the General Information is different for Construction / Demolition than for every other activity since the duration of each construction phase needs to be individually known.

Construction And Demolition Activity 1- Sense Information 2- Activity Phases 3- Activity Location INCOMPLET Atternative to Add/Remove Activity to: Activity Title (100 characters max): Activity Description: Check	Construction And Demo	lition			—		×
	Construct	ion And De	molition Act	ivity			
Activity General Information Alternative to Add/Remove Activity to: Activity Title (100 characters max): Activity Description: Activity Description: Check OK Cancel	-1- General Information INCOMPLETE	-2- Activity Phases INCOMPLETE	-3- Activity Location				
Alternative to Add/Remove Activity to:	Activity General Information	1					
Activity Title (100 characters max): Activity Description: Check OK Carcel	Alternative to Add/Remove	Activity to:		Ŷ			
Activity Description:	Activity Title (100 character	s max):					
Activity Description:							
Check	Activity Description:						
Check							\sim
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							\sim
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
Check							
OK Cancel			Check				
)K	Car	icel

Figure 4.2 Construction and Demolition General Information Tab

Begin by using the drop-down menu to the right of the "Alternative to Add/Remove Activity to" to determine which Alternative scenario the activity will be added or removed to.

It is now required to give the activity a title. ACAM limits the title to 100 characters or less. It is recommended to keep the title as concise as possible. If the user wishes to make more in depth notes regarding the activity, they can be listed in the Activity Description text box. It should be noted that this text box is not required to proceed, and its use is optional.

Once completed, select "Check", located at the bottom center of the Construction and Demolition Activity window. If the minimum amount of information required has been correctly inputted as per the instructions given, tab 1 will display "Complete" under its title, as shown in Figure 4.3.

-1- General Information COMPLETE	

Figure 4.3 General Information Tab 'Complete'

4.1.2 Activity Phases

Now, proceed to tab 2, titled "Activity Phases", by clicking on it. This window, pictured in Figure 4.4, will give the options for certain activities involved in the construction or demolition of a structure. The user should verify which of the activities will be necessary before proceeding with the scenario, and it is important to think about the analysis logically. For instance, building construction will almost always require site grading, excavating and trenching, and architectural coatings. Analyze each phase as applicable to the proposed project at hand.



Figure 4.4 Construction Activity Phases Toggled OFF

As shown above, all the Activity Phases will default to "NO", which indicates that the phase's emission sources will not be included in the ACAM calculations. In order to include an activity phase, click the YES-NO tab and be sure that "YES" appears in black lettering and green background, as shown in Figure 4.5.



Figure 4.5 "YES NO" Toggle

After selecting all the appropriate select "Check" located at the bottom center on the Construction and Demolition Activity window. At this point, a number of new tabs will appear at the top of the window. Depending upon which Activity Phases were selected, as shown in Figure 4.6.

Construction A	nd Demolitio						—		×		
Construction And Demolition Activity											
-6- Building Co	onstruction	-7- Arch	nitectural Co	atings	-8- Paving	(Asphalt) IPLETE	-9- A	ctivity Loca	tion		
-1- General Inf COMPLE	ormation TE	-2- Activi	ty Phases PLETE	-3- D INC	emolition DMPLETE	-4- Site Gra	ding TE	-5- Trencl	hing ETE		
Demoliti	ion							YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
Site Grad	ding							YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
Excavati	ng / Tre	enchin	g					YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	Vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
Building	Constr	uction	1					YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	s Vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
Architec	tural Co	oating	s					YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	s Vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
Paving (Asphalt	t)						YES	10		
Fugitive Dust	Constructio	n Exhaust	Vehicle Ex	haust	Worker Trip	s Vendor	Trips	YES is select Off-Gass	ted ing		
				Check							
							OK	Car	ncel		

Figure 4.6 Construction Activity Phases Toggled ON

4.1.3 Demolition

Selecting the Demolition tab by clicking on it will bring forth the options presented in Figure 4.7.

-6- Building Construction INCOMPLETE INCOMPLETE -7- Architectural Coatings INCOMPLETE INCOMPLETE INCOMPLETE INCOMPLETE								
-1- General Inform COMPLETE	ation	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De INCO	molition MPLETE	-4- Site Gra INCOMPLE	ding TE	-5- Trenchi INCOMPLET	ng E
Phase Timeline —								^
This Phase End Date:	N/A		Dhase	Duration ()	studes Nep M	lorking	dava)	
Ctart Month			Numb			orking	uays.)	
Start Month.								
Starting Within:	1st Qua	rter of the Month Y		AND				
Start Year (yyyy):			Numbe	er Of Days:	0		~	
Height of Building to	be demol	ished (ft):						
Height of Building to	be demol	ished (ft):				V	FS NO	
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work	be demol Settings - s? ked per w	eek:	5		~	YI	ES NO	1
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work Construction Exhaust	be demol Settings - s? ked per w t	eek:	5		V-	YE	ES NO	
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipmen	be demol Settings - s? ked per we t t Selection	eek:	5	- COMP	LETE - Edit C	YE YE	ES NO S is selected	
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipmen Vehicle Exhaust	be demol Settings - 5? ked per w t t Selection	eek:	5	- COMP	V LETE - Edit C	Ye Ye	ES NO S is selected	
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipmen Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling True	be demol Settings - 5? ked per w t t Selection uck Capaci	eek: n:	5	- COMP	LETE - Edit C	YE YE	ES NO S is selected	
Height of Building to Demolition Default Use Default Settings Average Day(s) work Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipmen Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling Tru Average Hauling Tru	be demol Settings - s? ked per w t t Selection uck Capaci uck Round	eek: h: ty (yd ³): Trip Commute (mile):	5 20 20	- COMP	LETE - Edit C	Ye Ye	ES NO S is selected	

Figure 4.7 Demolition Phase Tab Window

The user should start with the Phase Start Date, followed by the Phase Duration, shown in Figure 4.8. It should be noted that this step is identical for each construction phase, and thus will only be discussed this one time.

Phase Start Date		Phase Duration (Incl	udes Non-Working days.)
Start Month:	~	Number Of Months:	
Starting Within:	1st Quarter of the Month 🛛 👻	AND	
Start Year (yyyy):		Number Of Days:	0 ~

Figure 4.8 Construction Activity Phasing

Using the drop-down menu to the right of "Start Month:", select the month in which the demolition phase will begin. Proceed to the drop-down menu just below pertaining to "Starting Within" and choose the time period during the month selected when the demolition will begin. Finally, type the year for the phase start date in the text box to the right of "Start Year (yyyy):". Continuing to refer to Figure 4.8, the Phase Duration must now be addressed. Type the number of months the demolition will last in its respective text box, and then using the drop-down menu, select the number of days if it is not a whole number of months. If the user is unsure about the time frame of each phase, a helpful tool to estimate construction phase durations can be found at https://www.aqhelp.com/AQtools.html and is titled "Construction Phase Duration & Date Estimator".

The next information to provide is the Area of Building to be demolished (in square feet), and the height of the building (in feet). The length (L), width (W), and height (H) of the structure will need to be known. Refer to Figure 4.10.

General Demolition Information — Area of Building to be demolished (ft²): Height of Building to be demolished (ft):

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

Figure 4.9 Demolition Inputs



Figure 4.10 Length, Width, and Height Diagram

4.1.4 Site Grading

Selecting the Site Grading tab by clicking on it will bring forth the options presented in Figure 4.11.

Construction And Der	nolition					—		×
Construe	ctio	n And Demo	ition	Activ	ity			
-6- Building Construct	tion	-7- Architectural Co	atings	-8- Pavir	ng (Asphalt)	-9- Ac	tivity Locat	tion
-1- General Informati COMPLETE	ion	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De CON	molition IPLETE	-4- Site Gra	ding TE	-5- Trench	ing TE
Phase Timeline								^
This Phase End Date: N/	A							
Phase Start Date			Phase	Duration (ncludes Non-W	orking da	ays.)	
Start Month:		~	Numbe	r Of Month	s:			
Starting Within:	1st Qua	rter of the Month 🛛 👻	,	AND				
Start Voar (Jana)			Numbe	or Of David	0		~	
Start fear (yyyy).				n Of Days.	U			J
General Site Grading Info	ormatio	1 ———						
Area of Site to be Grade	d (ft ²):							
Amount of Material to b	e Haule	ed On-Site (yd ³):						
Amount of Material to b	o Haula	od Off Site (ud ³)						
Amount of Material to b	e naule	a on-site (ya-):						
- Site Grading Default S	ettings							
Lice Default Settinger?	- ungs					VEC	NO	
Use Delault Settings?						VEC	is colocted	
Average Day(s) worker	her we	ek.	5		v	YESI	is selected	
Construction Enhanced	, per we		-					
Off Dead Equipreset C	ele eti					off Deed F		
OII-Koad Equipment S	election	1.		- COMP	Edit C	лі-коай Е	quipment	
Vehicle Exhaust	_		20					
Average Hauling Truck	Capaci	ty (yd ³):	20					
			Charle					
			Спеск					
						ОК	Can	cel
							Cum	

Figure 4.11 Site Grading Phase Tab

Referring to Figure 4.12, the next information to provide is Area of Site to be Graded, Amount of Material to be Hauled On-Site, and Amount of Material to be Hauled Off-Site. Type these values in their respective text boxes. Be sure to pay close attention to the units. Typically, Site Grading is calculated by doubling the footprint of the structure to be constructed. Occasionally, the user will know the entire ground area to be disturbed; if this is the case, use this value.

General Site Grading Information	
Area of Site to be Graded (ft ²):	
Amount of Material to be Hauled On-Site (yd ³):	
Amount of Material to be Hauled Off-Site (yd ³):	

Figure 4.12 Site Grading Input

4.1.5 Trenching

Selecting the Trenching tab will bring forth the options shown in Figure 4.13.

Construction And Demolit	on				_		\times			
Construction And Demolition Activity										
-6- Building Construction INCOMPLETE	-7- Architectural Co	atings	-8- Pavin	ng (Asphalt) OMPLETE	-9- Ac	tivity Locatio	on			
-1- General Information COMPLETE	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De	molition MPLETE	-4- Site Gra COMPLET	ding E	-5- Trenchin INCOMPLET	ng E			
Phase Timeline							^			
This Phase End Date: N/A Phase Start Date		Phase	Duration (Includes Non-W	orking da	iys.)				
Start Month:	~	Numbe	er Of Month	IS:	2					
Starting Within: 1st Q	uarter of the Month 🛛 👻		AND							
Start Year (yyyy):		Numbe	er Of Days:	0		~				
General Excavating / Trenchin	g Information						١			
Area of Site to be Trenched (it ²):									
Amount of Material to be Ha	uled On-Site (yd ³):									
Amount of Material to be Ha	uled Off-Site (yd ³):						J			
Excavating / Trenching Def	ault Settings									
Use Default Settings?					YES	NO				
Average Day(c) worked per	woold	5			YES is	s selected				
Construction Exhaust	WEEK.	5								
Off-Road Equipment Select	ion:		- COMP	PLETE - Edit C	off-Road E	quipment				
Vehicle Exhaust										
Average Hauling Truck Cap	acity (yd ³):	20								
 		Check		1		 	× 1			
					OK	Cance	el			

Figure 4.13 Trenching Phase Tab

Referring to Figure 4.14, the next information to provide is the Area of Site to be Trenched (in square feet), Amount of Material to be Hauled On-Site (in cubic yards), and the Amount of Material to be Hauled Off-Site (in cubic yards). Type these values into their respective text boxes. To calculate the area of the site to be trenched, the linear foot length of the trench needs to be known, along with the width of the trench. A safe, conservative assumption assumes that trenches will be 3 feet wide.

General Excavating / Trenching Information	
Area of Site to be Trenched (ft ²):	
Amount of Material to be Hauled On-Site (yd ³):	
Amount of Material to be Hauled Off-Site (yd ³):	



4.1.6 Building Construction

Selecting the Building Construction tab by clicking on it will bring forth the options presented in Figure 4.15.

Construction And De	emolitio	n				—		
() Constru	ictio	n And Demol	ition	Activ	ity			
-1- General Informa COMPLETE	tion	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De CON	molition 1PLETE	-4- Site Gra	ding E	-5- Trench	ning TE
-6- Building Constru INCOMPLETE	uction	-7- Architectural Co INCOMPLETE	atings	-8- Pavii INCC	ng (Asphalt) OMPLETE	-9- Ac	tivity Loca COMPLETE	tion
Phase Timeline This Phase End Date: N Phase Start Date	I/A		Phase	Duration (Includes Non-W	/orking da	vs)	-
Start Month:		~	Numbe	r Of Month	is:		<i>J=</i> ¹	ון
Starting Within:	1st Qua	arter of the Month	,	AND				1
Start Year (vvvv):			Numbe	r Of Davs:	0		~	ıll
Height of Building (ft):								
 Building Construction Use Default Settings? 	n Default	t Settings —				YES	NO	
Average Day(s) worke	ed per w	eek:	5		Ŷ	1231	Selected	
Construction Exhaust								
Off-Road Equipment	Selectio	n:		- COMP	PLETE - Edit C)ff-Road E	quipment	
Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling Truc	k Round	Trip Commute (mile):	20					
···· · -·			Check					
						ОК	Can	ncel

Figure 4.15 Building Construction Phase Tab

The area of the building, (footprint, not living space or interior square footage), must be provided in square feet, followed by the height of the building, and finally, the number of units being constructed. Type these values in their respective text boxes, shown in Figure 4.16. Depending on the type of building category selected, different inputs must be provided. For instance, if "Single Family Housing" is selected, the height is not required, but the building's footprint and the number of units will be required. A helpful hint is to assume 10 feet per story, if the building's height is unknown.

General Building Constru	ction Information			
Building Category:	Multi-Family	~	Number of Units:	
Area of Building (ft ²):				
Height of Building (ft):				



4.1.7 Architectural Coatings

Selecting the Architectural Coatings will display the information shown in Figure 4.17.

COMPLETE	ation	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De	molition (PLETE	-4- Site Gra COMPLET	iding TE	-5- Trench COMPLET
-6- Building Constr COMPLETE	ruction	-7- Architectural C INCOMPLETE	oatings	-8- Pavir INCC	ng (Asphalt) DMPLETE	-9- A	ctivity Locat
hase Timeline ———							
his Phase End Date:	N/A						
hase Start Date			Phase	Duration (ncludes Non-V	/orking o	lays.)
tart Month:		~	Numbe	er Of Month	s:		
tarting Within:	1st Qua	rter of the Month		AND			
tart Year (yyyy):			Numbe	er Of Days:	0		~
Architectural Coatin	g Default	Settings					
Use Default Settings	?					YE	S NO
Average Day(s) work	ed per w	eek:	5		~	YES	is selected
Worker Trips							
Average Worker Rou	und Trip C	ommute (mile):	20				

Figure 4.17 Architectural Coatings Phase Tab

Referring to Figure 4.18 below, the building category must be selected using the respective drop-down menu. The total exterior surface area square footage of the building and the total number of building units must be input into their respective text boxes, depending on the building category selected. As a helpful hint, occasionally, only the footprint of the building is known. In this instance, assume the building is a square (length = width), and as in the previous construction phases, assume 10 feet per story.

General Architectural Coating	g Information		
Building Category:	Multi-Family ~	Number of Units:	
Total Square Footage (ft ²):]	



4.1.8 Paving

Selecting the Paving (Asphalt) tab will bring forth the following options in the Construction and Demolition Activity window, pictured in Figure 4.19.

-1- General Information COMPLETE	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- De	emolition MPLETE	-4- Site Gra COMPLE	iding TE	-5- Trencl COMPLE	ning TE
-6- Building Construction COMPLETE	-7- Architectural Co COMPLETE	oatings	-8- Pavir INCC	ng (Asphalt) DMPLETE	-9- /	Activity Loca	tio
hase Timeline ————							-
fhis Phase End Date: N/A							
Phase Start Date		Phase	Duration (ncludes Non-V	/orking	days.)	-
Start Month:	¥	Numb	er Of Month	s:			
Starting Within: 1st Q	uarter of the Month 🛛 👻		AND				
Start Year (vvvv):		Numb	er Of Days:	0		¥	ıL.
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²):	mation]					-
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): - Paving (Asphalt) Default Set Use Default Settings?	mation]			Y	ES NO	-
Seneral Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): Paving (Asphalt) Default Se Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per	mation	5		v	YE	ES NO S is selected	-
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): - Paving (Asphalt) Default Se Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust	mation	5		v	YE	ES NO S is selected	
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): - Paving (Asphalt) Default Set Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipment Selection	mation	5	- COMP	v LETE - Edit (YE YE	S is selected	
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): Paving (Asphalt) Default Se Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipment Selecti Vehicle Exhaust	mation	5	- COMP	v LETE - Edit (YE YE Dff-Road	ES NO S is selected	
Seneral Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): Paving (Asphalt) Default Se Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipment Selecti Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling Truck Capa	mation	5	- COMP	v PLETE - Edit C	YE YE Dff-Road	ES NO S is selected	-
Seneral Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): - Paving (Asphalt) Default Set Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipment Selecti Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling Truck Capa	mation	5 20 20	- COMP	v LETE - Edit (YE YE Dff-Road	S is selected	
General Paving (Asphalt) Infor Paving Area (ft ²): Paving (Asphalt) Default Se Use Default Settings? Average Day(s) worked per Construction Exhaust Off-Road Equipment Selecti Vehicle Exhaust Average Hauling Truck Capa Average Hauling Truck Rour Worker Trips	mation	5 20 20	- COMP	v PLETE - Edit (YE YE Off-Road	ES NO S is selected	

Figure 4.19 Paving Phase Tab

Referring to Figure 4.20, the paving area must be input as square feet, in its respective text box.

General Paving (Asphalt)	Information		
Paving Area (ft ²):]	



4.1.9 Activity Location

Selecting the Activity Location tab will bring forth the following options in the Construction and Demolition Activity window, pictured in Figure 4.21. In this window, use both drop-down menus to select the county and the base where the construction/demolition will take place.

Construction And Demolitio	n				—		\times
[]] Constructio	n And Demol	lition	Activ	ity			
-1- General Information COMPLETE	-2- Activity Phases COMPLETE	-3- Den COM	nolition PLETE	-4- Site Gra COMPLET	ding E	-5- Trench COMPLET	ing E
-6- Building Construction COMPLETE	-7- Architectural Co COMPLETE	atings	-8- Pavir COI	ng (Asphalt) MPLETE	-9- A	ctivity Locat NCOMPLETE	ion
Activity Location (Counties) —							
(All selected Counties must com	e from the same State)		-				
County	Selection List			Se	elected Co	ounties	
Filter Type Base Counties	Y Filter Selected Base	e v		Jefferson			\sim
Jefferson			>				
			<				
							\sim
		\sim		<			>
Activity Location (Regulatory A	reas) —————						_
	Selected I	Regulatory	Areas				
Birmingham, AL						W	
[8HR O3] [PM 2.5]							
NOT IN A REGULATOR	Y AREA					Р	
							\sim
		Check					
					OK	Can	cel

Figure 4.21 Activity Location Phase Tab

The Regulatory Area Section pictured in figure 4.22 informs the user of the attainment status of the selected counties. Based on the location of the base, the regulatory area will be whole (W) or a partial (P). Check the output given in the Regulatory Area section of the window (shown in red in figure 4.20) to complete the Construction Demonstration activity.

Activity Location (Regulatory Areas)					
Sele	cted Regulatory A	Areas			
Birmingham, AL				W	
[8HR O3] [PM 2.5]				\rightarrow	
NOT IN A REGULATORY AREA				Р	
				\sim	
	Check				
	y Location (Regulatory Areas) Sele Birmingham, AL [8HR O3] [PM 2.5] NOT IN A REGULATORY AREA	y Location (Regulatory Areas) Selected Regulatory A Birmingham, AL [8HR O3] [PM 2.5] NOT IN A REGULATORY AREA Check	Selected Regulatory Areas Birmingham, AL [8HR O3] [PM 2.5] NOT IN A REGULATORY AREA Check	Selected Regulatory Areas Birmingham, AL [8HR O3] [PM 2.5] NOT IN A REGULATORY AREA	

Figure 4.22 Selected Regulatory Area Section

NOTE: Partial regulatory areas must verify which areas pertain to your air force base.

5 AIRCRAFT FLIGHT OPERATIONS CASE STUDY

5.1 Introduction

ACAM is currently the only USAF approved tool that can handle all emissions generating activities, resulting from fixed-wing aircraft, including Flight Operations, Aerospace Ground Equipment (AGE), and Engine Test Cell. ACAM includes a list of nearly all fixed-wing USAF aircraft, with approved default values for different aircraft engine settings, in order to keep the analysis as simple as possible. Default values and equipment for Auxiliary Power Unit (APU), Engine Test Cell, and AGE are preloaded into the ACAM Aircraft Activity. This case study will walk the user through the Aircraft Activity tab in ACAM.

5.2 General Aircraft Terminology

Before proceeding into the ACAM analysis, a basic understanding of aircraft terminology, relating to air quality, is necessary. It is important to note that aircraft operations are calculated differently for noise and air, and they cannot be used interchangeably.



Figure 5.1 Aircraft Activity accounted for in ACAM

NOTE: You must contact AFCEC/CZTQ for base-specific TIM data for flight operations. This requires noise BaseOps information.

5.2.1 Time-in-Mode (TIM)

Flight Operations Cycles (i.e. LTO, CP, are defined by the TIMs, or length of time an aircraft spends in each of the five Engine Power Setting (i.e., idle, approach, intermediate, military, and afterburner).

5.2.2 Landing and Takeoff Cycle (LTO)

The EPA has established formal procedures for calculating exhaust emissions associated with aircraft operations based on a Landing and Takeoff (LTO) Cycle (USEPA 1992). Under the EPA procedures, an emissions inventory for aircraft operations focuses on the emissions in the vertical column (generally bound by the perimeter of the base) of air referred to as the "mixing zone" or "inversion layer". Exhaust emissions occurring within this area are calculated for one complete LTO cycle for each aircraft type by applying aircraft engine-specific emission factors (EFs). These EFs are derived from fuel flow rates, and the period of time (or time-in-mode, TIM) that each engine operates at a power setting during an LTO. Additionally, EFs are derived from activity based operational data, such as the number of aircraft, the number of engines per aircraft, the annual number of LTOs, etc. Emissions occurring above the mixing zone are typically not considered during the emissions inventory process.

Each LTO cycle for fixed-wing aircraft is comprised of five flight modes that operate in different power settings: taxi out, takeoff, climb out, approach, and taxi in. The five flight modes are described below:

- Taxi out: The time from engine startup to takeoff.
- Takeoff: Characterized by full engine thrust, the time it takes the aircraft to reach between 500 and 1,000 feet above ground level. This transition height is typical and does not vary much from location to location or among aircraft categories.
- Climb out: The time following takeoff that concludes when an aircraft exits the mixing zone and continues to cruise altitude.
- Approach: The time from the moment the aircraft enters the mixing zone until the aircraft lands.
- Taxi in: The time spent after landing, until the aircraft is parked, and the engines are turned off.



Figure 5.2 Landing Take Off Cycle

5.2.3 Close Pattern (CP) Cycle

A CP cycle (also known as Touch and Go or T&G cycle with a return loop) is a flight maneuver that involves practice landing on a runway by briefly touching the landing gear to the runway (or coming very close), transitioning immediately into climb out, and then a return loop maneuver into another practice landing. As with an LTO cycle, you only account for aircraft flight below the mixing height (EPA default = 3,000 ft AGL).



Figure 5.3 Close Pattern Cycle

5.2.4 Low Flight Pattern (LFP)

A LFP is a flight maneuver that occurs below the mixing height that is not part of an LTO or CP cycle.



Figure 5.4 Low Flight Pattern Cycle

5.2.5 Auxiliary Power Unit (APU)

APU provides power to an aircraft while it is on the ground and sometimes through takeoff and climb out. APUs are turbine-powered generators, usually ranging in size from 50-400 horsepower, and they burn JP-8 fuel, thus causing them to be an emissions source within the mixing zone. This will need to be accounted for, depending on the aircraft activity type.

5.2.6 Aircraft Activity Overview

To begin an Aircraft Activity in ACAM, select the Aircraft Activity button, as shown in Figure 5.5.



Figure 5.5 Aircraft Activity button

5.2.7 General Information

Selecting the Aircraft Activity icon will bring forth the ACAM window pictured in Figure 5.6. The user should begin with tab 1, titled "General Information".

The user should work from top to bottom, making sure each information entry is filled in.

Aircraft					—	>
Aircraft A	ctivity					
 1- General Information INCOMPLETE	-2- Activity Type	-3- Activity	/ Location PLETE			
Activity General Informatio	n ———					
dd or Remove Activity fro	om Baseline?			~		
Alternative to Add/Remov	e Activity to:			~		
Activity Title (100 characte	ers max):					
ctivity Description:						
ACTIVITY TIMELINE						
la Anticita Indofinita?		.				
is Activity indefinite:	YES					
	NO is selected	d				
Activity Start Date			Activity End Da	te		
			1			
Start Month:		~	End Month:			¥
Start Month: Start Year (yyyy):		~	End Month: End Year (yyyy):			 ~
Start Month: Start Year (yyyy):		¥	End Month: End Year (yyyy):			v
Start Month: Start Year (yyyy):		~	End Month: End Year (yyyy):			 Ŷ
Start Month: Start Year (yyyy):		Che	End Month: End Year (yyyy): eck			~
Start Month:		Che	End Month: End Year (yyyy): eck		OK	~

Figure 5.6 General Information window

The user should first use the drop-down menu, pictured in Figure 5.6, to inform if they are adding or removing aircraft from the base, by selecting "Add" or "Remove", respectively. Then, the Alternative scenario should be selected to add or remove the activity to. It is now required to give the activity a title.

ACAM limits the title to 100 characters or less. It is recommended to keep the title as concise as possible. If the user wishes to make more in-depth notes regarding the activity, they can be listed in the Activity Description text box

The user will now need to state the time frame for the activity. The user first needs to determine if the activity is indefinite. If it is, be sure the button in the Activity Timeline is showing "YES" highlighted in green as shown in Figure 5.7. If it is not indefinite, be sure "NO" is selected, as it is in Figure 5.6.

ACTIVITY TIMELINE				
Is Activity Indefinite?	YES	NO		
	YES is s	selected		

Figure 5.7 Activity Indefinite Tab

Next, the Activity Start Date and Activity End Date are required. If the activity is indefinite, only an activity starts date needs to be inputted. Referring to Figure 5.8, the start month and end month will be selected from the drop-down menu. The start year and end year should be typed in their respective text boxes in the format (yyyy).

Activity Start Date	Activity End Date
Start Month: 🗸 🗸 🗸	End Month: v
Start Year (yyyy):	End Year (yyyy):

Figure 5.8 Activity Phasing

After entering in the dates, select the "Check" button. If the previous instructions were followed, and the correct formatting was used where necessary, the General Information tab will display "COMPLETE" in green lettering, as shown in Figure 5.9.

-1- General Information					
COMPLETE					

Figure 5.9 General Information Complete

5.2.8 Activity Type

The user will now select tab 2, titled "Activity Type". Selecting this tab will bring forward the options shown in Figure 5.10. All the Activity Types are defaulted to "NO". The user will need to click on that button to toggle the response to "YES", for each activity documented. For the purposes of this case study, all Activity Types are toggled to "YES", as depicted in Figure 5.11.

Aircraft				—		×
AC Aircraft A	Activity					
-1- General Information COMPLETE	-2- Activity Type INCOMPLETE	-3- Activity Location INCOMPLETE				
Flight Opera	tion					
Calculates emissions from	n aircraft sortie(s) and	d from aircraft auxiliary p	oower unit(s).			
Are you Adding/Removi	ng LTO (Landing and	Takeoff) Flight Operatio	n(s)?		YES	10
Are you Adding/Removi	ng CP (Close Pattern)	Flight Operation(s)?		ļ	NO is select	cted
Are you Adding/Removi	ng LFP (Low Flight Pa	ttern) Flight Operation(s)?		YES NO is select	NO cted
Are you Adding/Removi		NO is selec	NO cted			
Engine Test (Cell					
Calculates emissions from	n engine test cell(s) a	ctivities.				
Are you Adding/Removi	ng Engine Test Cell(s)	?			NO is selec	NO cted
Aerospace G	round Equi	pment				
Calculates emissions from	n aerospace ground e	equipment(s) activities.				
Are you Adding/Removi	ng Aerospace Ground	l Equipment (AGE)?			NO is selec	NO cted
		Check				
				ОК	Ca	ncel

Figure 5.10 Activity Type

Three Activity Types are presented: Flight Operation, Engine Test Cell, and Aerospace Ground Equipment. Determine which options are relevant to the aircraft activity being conducted. Selecting "YES" will include emissions or the relevant sources, while selecting "NO" excludes those emissions from the activity. At least one

activity must be selected to continue. In order to continue, select "Check", regardless of which Activity(s) are selected.

Selecting "Check" will change the layout of the window by adding additional tabs. The tabs will differ, depending on which Activity Types were selected in tab 2. Figure 5.11 displays the tabs as if the user selected all the Activity Types. If not all the Activity Types were selected, there will be less tabs present. The list, shown below, gives an overview of which tabs will appear, depending on the Activity Type selection.

Flight Operations:

- LTO
 - o Aircraft & Engine
 - LTO Flight Operation(s)
 - o APU
- CP
 - Aircraft & Engine
 - o CP
- LFP
 - Aircraft & Engine
 - o LFP
- DC
 - Aircraft & Engine
 - o DC

Engine Test Cell:

- Aircraft & Engine
- Engine Test Cell(s)

Aerospace Ground Equipment:

• AGE

-1- General Information COMPLETE	a .2. Activity Type	THE WHIT LET L	INCOMPLETE		
	COMPLETE	-3- Aircraft & Engine INCOMPLETE	-4- LTO Flight Operation INCOMPLETE		
Flight Operat	ion				
Calculates emissions from	aircraft sortie(s) and from air	craft auxiliary power unit(s).			
Are you Adding/Removin	g LTO (Landing and Takeoff) F	light Operation(s)?	YESN		
Are you Adding/Removin	g CP (Close Pattern) Flight Op	peration(s)?	YES is select		
Are you Adding/Removing LFP (Low Flight Pattern) Flight Operation(s)?					
Are you Adding/Removin	g DC (Destination Cycle) Fligh	nt Operation(s)?	YES N NO is select		
Engine Test C	ell				
Calculates emissions from	engine test cell(s) activities.				
Are you Adding/Removin	g Engine Test Cell(s)?		YES is select		
Aerospace Gr	ound Equipme	nt			
Calculates emissions from	aerospace ground equipmer	nt(s) activities.			
Are you Adding/Removin	g Aerospace Ground Equipm	ent (AGE)?	YES is select		
Are you Adding/Removin	g Aerospace Ground Equipm	ent (AGE)?	YES is selec		

Figure 5.11 Activity Type (All Selected)

5.2.9 Aircraft and Engine

Tab 3 is where the aircraft and engine is selected in ACAM. The aircraft are listed in alphabetical order. The user should exhibit caution when selecting the aircraft, as many of the same aircraft models have different engines.

INCOMPLETE	-6- Engine Te INCOMP	est Cell(s) LETE	-7- AGE	-8- Activity Location INCOMPLETE
-1- General Informat COMPLETE	ion -2- Activ COMP	ity Type PLETE	-3- Aircraft & Engi INCOMPLETE	ne -4- LTO Flight Operation(s) INCOMPLETE
ircraft and Engine Selec	tion			
Primary Function # of I	ingines Engine T	уре		
-ALLALI	× -ALL-	~		Filter Reset
Ai	rcraft & Engine Sele	ection List		Selected Aircraft & Engine
Primary Function	Designation	Engine	Model	
Combat	A-10	TF34-GE-10	A AC	Aircraft Designation
Combat	A-10	TF34-GE-40	0	None
Combat	A-10A	TF34-GE-10	0	
Combat	A-10C	TF34-GE-10	0	Popular Name
Combat	A-37	J69-T-25		None
Combat	A-3A	J57-P-6B		Engine Model
Combat	A-3B	J57-P-10		None
Combat	A-4	J52-P-2		Engine Type
Combat	A-4	J52-P-8		None
Combat	A-4	J65-W-2		Number of Engines
Combat	A-4	J65-W-4		None
Combat	A-4C	J65-W-16A		
Compat	A-4C	J65-W-20		
Combat				
Combat Combat Combat	A-4E	J52-P-6A		

Figure 5.12 Aircraft and Engine

If the user cannot locate their desired aircraft, a surrogate aircraft will need to be utilized. ACAM contains a viable surrogate for nearly every fixed-wing aircraft. If assistance is required in finding a viable surrogate, please contact AFCEC/CZTQ.

After finding a suitable surrogate with similar engine specifications, use the drop-down menu to select "YES" for the question "Is selected Aircraft and Engine a surrogate?", as shown in Figure 5.13. The original aircraft name and original engine name will need to be provided in their respective text boxes, following the surrogate question.

Aircraft and Engine Surrogate —		
Is selected Aircraft and Engine a surrogate?		No ~
Original Aircraft Name:	Original Engine Name:	
С	heck	

Figure 5.13 Aircraft Surrogate Information (if applicable)

Once the aircraft and relevant surrogate information has been provided, select "Check" and proceed to the next tab.

5.2.10 Flight Operations

The flight operations tab is pictured in Figure 5.14.

INCOMPLET	E	-6- En	gine Test Cell(s) NCOMPLETE		-7- AG	E ETE	-8- A	ctivity Lo	cation TE
-1- General I COMP	nformati LETE	on -2	- Activity Type COMPLETE	-	3- Aircraft & E COMPLETE	ngine	-4- LTO I	Flight Ope	eration(E
ΓΟ (Landing an	d Takeoff) Flight Oper	ations	_					
Jumber of Airc	raft:								
light Operation	n Cycle Ty	pe:				LT	O (Landing a	nd Takeof	f)
lumber of Ann	ual Flight	Operation (Cycles for all Aircraf	ft:					
Flight Operati	ons / Mai	ntenance Te	st(s) Default Setting	js —					
Use Default Se	ettings?							YES	NO
Flinks On and	C 1	T ime In M						YES is	selected
Flight Operatio	ons Cycles	Time in Nio	de (111VI) ———						
Flight Mode		Т	IM		Flight Mode		ТІІ	м	
Flight Mode Taxi Out		Т	ТМ		Flight Mode	Military	TII (mins):	0.4	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In	Idle (mii	т ns):	29.8		Flight Mode	Military Afterbur	TII (mins): ner (mins):	0.4	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach	Idle (mii Approad	7 ns): ch (mins):	29.8 3.5		Flight Mode Take Off Climbout	Military Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins):	0.4 0.8	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach Maintenance T	Idle (mii Approad	T ns): ch (mins): ne on Aircra	29.8 3.5		Take Off Climbout	Military Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins):	0.4 0 0.8	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach Maintenance T Number of An	Idle (min Approac ests (Engi nual Main	7 ns): ch (mins): ne on Aircra ntenance Te:	29.8 3.5 ft) sts Per Aircraft:		Flight Mode Take Off Climbout	Military Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins): 12	0.4 0 0.8	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach Maintenance To Number of An	Idle (mir Approad ests (Engi nual Mair	T ns): ch (mins): ne on Aircra ntenance Te	IM 29.8 3.5 ft) sts Per Aircraft: POWER SETTI		Flight Mode Take Off Climbout	Military Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins): 12	M 0.4 0.8	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach Maintenance T Number of An Idle (mins):	Approad	T ns): ch (mins): ne on Aircra ntenance Te:	IM 29.8 3.5 ft) sts Per Aircraft: POWER SETTI	NG	Take Off Climbout TEST DURATIC Approach (min	Military (Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins): 12 27	0.4 0 0.8	
Flight Mode Taxi Out Taxi In Approach Maintenance To Number of An Idle (mins): Intermediate (Idle (min Approad ests (Engi nual Main mins):	T ns): th (mins): ne on Aircra ntenance Te: 12 9	IM 29.8 3.5 ft) sts Per Aircraft: POWER SETTI		Flight Mode Take Off Climbout TEST DURATIO Approach (min Military (mins):	Military (Afterbur Intermed	TII (mins): ner (mins): diate (mins): 12 27 12	0.4 0 0.8	

Figure 5.14 Flight Operations Tab

The total number of aircraft, as a result of the action (of a specific type), should be entered into the first text box, along with the number of LTOs, CPs, and LFPs as applicable to the definitions presented previously. It should be noted that the values entered for LTOs, CPs, and LFPs are for <u>all aircraft of a type</u>. Meaning that these values are total values, not an individual value for each aircraft. If there are more than one type of aircraft resulting from a proposed action, multiple Aircraft Activities must be present in ACAM.

0

NOTE: The default Time-in-Mode (TIM) for flight operations are only valid for general screening purposes, and for temporary beddown of aircraft. If a major beddown of an aircraft occurs, TIMs based off site specific noise data will be developed in house at the Air Force Civil Engineering Center

5.2.11 Auxiliary Power Unit

The APU tab is pictured in Figure 5.15. The APU tab is preloaded with applicable equipment, based on the aircraft selected. The user only needs to click the "Check" button and proceed to the next tab.

hircraft							—		×
A Aircra	ft Act	ivity							
-1- General Info COMPLET	rmation E	-2- A	ctivity Typ OMPLETE	pe	-3- Aircraft & Engine COMPLETE		-4- LTO Flight Operation(s) COMPLETE		
-5- APU -6- Engi INCOMPLETE INC			e Test Cel DMPLETE	l(s)	-7- AGE	TE	-8- Activity Location		
Auxiliary Power Uni	t (APU) —				•				
Use Flight Operation(s) Defaults? YES NO YES is selected YES is selected									IO cted
Number of APU per Aircraft	Operation For Eac	n Hours h LTO	Exempt Source?		Designation		Manufact	ırer	
0	0		No ~		131-3A	Ì			\sim
0	0		No ~		131-9				
0	0		No ~		331 250G				
0	0		No ~		331-49-7081				
0	0		No ~		3800100-4				
0	0		No ~		ASHG70-1				
0	0		No ~		GTCP 85-72		Honeywell	Inc.	
0	0		No ~		GTCP 100-54		Honeywell	Inc.	
0	0		No ~		GTCP 165-1		Honeywell	Inc.	
0	0		No ~		GTCP 165-9				
0	0		No ~		GTCP 30-300		Honeywell	Inc.	
0	0		No ~		GTCP 331-200				
0	0		No		100/050				\sim
				Cł	neck				
							ОК	Car	ncel

Figure 5.15 APU Tab

5.2.12 Engine Test Cell(s)

Similar to the APU tab, the Engine Test Cell tab (Figure 5.16) is preloaded with the applicable equipment and default values, based off previously input aircraft information. The user only needs to select "Check", then proceed.

🚽 Aircraft						- 0	×		
A Aircraft Activity									
-1- General Informa COMPLETE	tion	-2- Activity Type COMPLETE		3- Aircraft & Engine COMPLETE	-4- LTO Flight Operation(s) COMPLETE				
-5- APU COMPLETE	-6	- Engine Test Cell(s) INCOMPLETE	-7- AGE	-8- Activity Location INCOMPLETE					
Engine Test Cell									
Use Flight Operation(s)	Default	Settings?			Yes		~		
Total Number of Aircra	ft Engin	es Tested Annually:			8				
F Engine Test Cell Defa	ult Setti	ngs							
Use Default Settings?						YES is selected			
Annual Run-ups / Test	Duratio	ns					_		
Annual Run-ups (Per	Aircraft	Engine):			1				
		POWER SETTI	ING	TEST DURATION					
ldle (mins):	12			Approach (mins):	27				
Intermediate (mins):	9			Military (mins):	12				
AfterBurn (mins):	0								
			Che	ck					
					ОК	Cano	cel		

Figure 5.16 Engine Test Cell(s) Tab

5.2.13 Aerospace Ground Equipment

Similar to APU and Engine Test Cell tabs, the Aerospace Ground Equipment tab (Figure 5.17) is preloaded with all the applicable equipment, based on the aircraft selected. The user only needs to select "Check" to complete this tab.

Aircraft							—	
AC Aircraft Activity								
-1- General Info COMPLET								eration(s) E
-5- APU -6- Engin COMPLETE CC			e Test Cell(s) IPLETE) -7- AGE INCOMPLETE		-8- Activity Location INCOMPLETE		
Aerospace Ground I	Equipment (A	(GE)						
Use Flight Operatio	Use Flight Operation(s) Defaults?							
Total Number of AGE	Operation For Each	g and la Hours	Exempt Source?	for A	AGE Type	5	Designation	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		A/M32C-18	^
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-11	
1	2		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-1A - 18.4hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-1A - 20hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-2A	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-5 - 100hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-5 - 110hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-5 - 130hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-7 - 48hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-7 - 52hp	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MC-8	
0	0		No ~		Air Compressor		MODP160WJDAC.	IF 🔍
				Ch	neck			
							ОК	Cancel

Figure 5.17 AGE Equipment Tab

5.2.14 Activity Location

Selecting the Activity Location tab will bring forth the following options in the Aircraft Activity window, pictured in Figure 5.18 In this window, use both drop-down menus to select the county and the base where the construction/demolition will take place.

🛃 Aircraft			- o x
Aircraft	Activity		
-1- General Informat COMPLETE	ion -2- Activity Type COMPLETE	-3- Aircraft & Engine COMPLETE	-4- LTO Flight Operation(s) COMPLETE
-5- APU COMPLETE	-6- Engine Test Cell(s) COMPLETE	-7- AGE COMPLETE	-8- Activity Location INCOMPLETE
Activity Location (Counties	es)		
C C	ounty Selection List		Selected Counties
Filter Type Base Count	ies v Filter Selected Base	y Jeffe	rson^
Jefferson			
		<	
		~ <	>
Activity Location (Regula	tory Areas) —		
	Selected I	Regulatory Areas	
Birmingham, AL			w
	ATORY AREA		P
		Check	
			OK Cancel

Figure 5.18 Activity Location Phase Tab

The Regulatory Area Section, pictured in figure 5.18 informs the user of the attainment status of the selected counties. Based on the location of the base, the regulatory area will be whole (W) or a partial (P). Check the output given in the Regulatory Area section of the window (shown in red in figure 5.19) to complete the Construction Demonstration activity.



Figure 5.19 Selected Regulatory Area Section



NOTE: Partial regulatory areas must verify which areas pertain to your air force base.